
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

February 04, 2020 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Presentations 
1. 4th Grade Presentation 

2. Audit Presentation 

3. Lynda Brown-America's Documents of Law & Government 

4. Four County Update 

  

Minutes 
5. January 07, 2020 Minutes 

6. January 21, 2020 Minutes 

  

Calendars 
7. February-April 2020 Calendars 

  

Consent Agenda 
8. Motion to accept as information the January 2020 payables to include General Fund in the 

amount of $827,901.91, TSPLOST in the amount of $318,824.10, SPLOST in the amount of 

$56,167.97, General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $8,293.86 and the January 2020 

financials. 

  

Unfinished Business 
9. RV Hardship Request 

10. Discussion of Clothes Closet Building 

  

New Business 
11. Pitney Bowes Lease Renewal 

12. Animal Services Shelter Fencing 

13. Purchase of Roll Off Truck 

14. Replacement Compacter Containers 

15. Commissioner Liaison Reports 

16. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
17. Personnel 
  

1



 

1 
 

 
JDA Quarterly Report – October– December 2019 

Report covering Quarter 4 

Stanton Springs 

 

Marketing Activity: 

o JDA co-sponsored and JDA representatives attended the SEUS Japan conference in October in 

Savannah – important connections were made with top executives for Takeda and other local 

Japanese  

o Economic development professionals updated JDA marketing material and obtained ownership 

of the Stanton springs website 

Prospects: 

o Still working with several prospects that would fit nicely in the park and expand into the eastern 

portion of Stanton Springs  

o Completion of the parkway extension will attract more prospects as will the 18-acre pad-ready 

site 

Current Tenants:   

o Takeda continues to increase its employee base  

o Facebook continues constructing buildings one and two at a rapid pace.       

Parkway Extension 

o All construction, including crossing Dennis Creek, is complete. 

o Paving is underway and will be complete following final installation of utilities. 

o JDA decided to extend the parkway an additional 485 feet for a total extension of 2,885 feet so 

that it connects with the graded pad site.  The additional extension will be paid for with the 

unused contingency funds. 

o Project schedule extended to accommodate utility installation by third parties  

Financial: 

o The 2,885-foot parkway extension and graded pad site is funded in full by 2018 property sale 

proceeds.  

o Walton County collected 2019 tax revenues from Takeda in the amount of $960,357.50 (higher 

than prior estimates due to increase in millage rate) which will be distributed to the Counties 

and School Districts per the Revenue Sharing Agreement in March 2020. 

o Newton County collected 2019 tax revenues for property located in the Newton County portion 

of Stanton Springs in the amount of $18,274.78 which will also be distributed in March 2020.  

2



 

2 
 

o Facebook PILOT payments will commence once Certificate of Occupancies are issued for its first 

two buildings which could be as soon as 2021.  The payment amounts increase as each new 

building gets a CO up to the five total buildings possible.   

o The JDA will adopt its July 2020-June 2021 budget in January  

Other Activities: 

o JDA continues to work with Counties to create a procedures manual regarding tax assessment, 

tax collection and tax digest reporting under House Bill 406 

Activities Anticipated in First Quarter of 2020: 

o Adopt and distributed July 2020-June 2021 budget 

o Completion of parkway extension and ribbon cutting  

o Updates to websites 

o Facebook construction activities continue  

o 2019 tax revenues distributed to Counties and School Districts in March 2020 

 

 

3



January 07, 2020 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET THIS 

DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Ronald H. 

Milton., Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr., 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres and County Clerk Leslie Brandt. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation. 
 

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR 2020 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to nominate Commissioner von 

Hanstein as Chair for year 2020.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to nominate Commissioner Riden 

as Vice-Chair for year 2020.  Unanimously Approved. 

  

AGENDA APPROVAL 
  

RECOGNITION OF SERVICE-RON ZAY & RUBEN WALKER 

Ron Zay and the late Ruben Walker were recognized for their many years of service on Morgan County 

Boards. 

 

MORGAN MEDICAL CENTER AUDIT PRESENTATION 

Kyle Wilkerson, CFO of Morgan Medical Center and Ralph Castillo, CEO, presented the FY19 hospital 

audit. 

  

MINUTES 
December 03, 2019 Minutes  

December 17, 2019 Minutes 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden to approve the December 03, 2019 and December 17, 2019 BOC 

minutes as presented, Seconded by Commissioner Harris.  Unanimously Approved. 

  

CALENDARS 
County Manager, Adam Mestres reviewed January-March 2020 calendars.  

  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion to accept as information the December 2019 payables to include General Fund in the amount of 

$660,899.78, TSPLOST in the amount of $1,356,894.15, SPLOST in the amount of $55,164.07, General 

Fund electronic payments in the amount of $813,875.19 and the December 2019 financials. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie to approve the consent agenda as presented, Seconded by 

Commissioner Harris. Unanimously Approved. 

  

PLANNING COMMISSION NEW BUSINESS 

4



 

C.B. HUTCHERSON IS REQUESTING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT, FROM 

AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C2), FOR 1.19 ACRES LOCATED ON 

BONNER LANE (TAX PARCEL 052-030F). 
C.B. Hutcherson is requesting a zoning map amendment to change 1.19 acres on Bonner Lane to General 

Commercial-C2 from Agriculture-AG.  The applicant owns a 9 acre commercially zone property at the 

corner of Seven Islands Road and I-20.  The applicant is seeking to rezone the smaller parcel in order to 

have road access on Bonner Lane with the same rezoning. 

 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner, stated staff has no concerns with the request to rezone the property.  The size 

and road frontage for the 1.19-acre parcel is compliant with C2 zoning without being combined with the 

applicants 9-acre parcel. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents and opponents to speak-No one spoke. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris to approve the Zoning Map Amendment request, from Agricultural 

(AG) to General Commercial (C2), for 1.19 acres located at Bonner Lane (Tax Parcel 052-030F), Seconded 

by Commissioner Milton.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

CAMP TWIN LAKES IS REQUESTING A VARIANCE TO ARTICLE 10 OF THE MORGAN 

COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE RELATED TO PAVING FOR 278.14 ACRES LOCATED AT 

1391 KEENCHEEFOONEE ROAD (TAX PARCEL 021-105). 
Camp Twin Lakes is requesting a variance to the requirements for paving and curbing for the expansion 

project for Camp Twin Lakes, which is currently in the design phase.  The request is to allow gravel parking 

at the staff parking area, which is a private area.  They are not requesting a paving waiver for the parking 

lot at the administrative offices and dining hall, which is a public area. 

 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner, stated staff has no concerns regarding the variance request. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents and opponents to speak-No one spoke. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden to approve the variance request for Camp Twin Lakes to Article 10 of 

the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance related to paving for 278.14 acres located at 1391 Keencheefoonee 

Road (Tax Parcel 021-105), Seconded by Commissioner Harris.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 NEW BUSINESS 

 

RV HARDSHIP REQUEST 
Planning Director, Chuck Jarrell stated Bobby Richards of 2881 Fairplay Road is requesting a RV 

hardship.  His son, Terry Richards, resides in the RV on his 100-acre farm to help care for him.  Mr. 

Richards was informed that the current ordinance prohibits RV's from being occupied more than 15 days 

in a 60-day period.  Mr. Richards was asked if his son, who lives in the camper, could move into his 

residence.  The answer was no.  Mr. Richards stated that his son needed internet for his business and that 

internet service was not available at his home. 

 

Terry Richards, son of Bobby Richards, spoke before the Board.  T. Richards informed the Board he placed 

the RV on his parent’s farm to help care for them.  Since then, his mother has passed, and his father has 

been diagnosed with dementia.  He does not plan to be a permanent resident and will vacate the property 

once his father no longer needs his assistance. 

5



 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden to approve the hardship request for one year to be reviewed after one 

year and ensure the septic system is approved by the Health Department.  Motion died for lack of a 

second. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Milton to table the RV hardship request until the January 21, 2020 

Commission meeting, and for Planning Director, Chuck Jarrell to inspect the electrical system and septic 

to be inspected by the Health Department, Seconded by Commissioner Ainslie.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-RES-001 -DECLARATION OF OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE  

This resolution states that the County will use future capital lease proceeds to reimburse itself for funding 

the Schneider Project. 

 

The County is currently in the financial position to pay up front for expenditures related to the Schneider 

Project, which allows us to delay closing a loan in the amount of $3,269,640.  By doing this, the county 

will save a substantial amount of interest on the loan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



MOTION made by Commissioner Riden to approve Resolution-Declaration of Official Intent to 

Reimburse (2020-RES-001), Seconded by Commissioner Ainslie.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

VEHICLE PURCHASE FOR SENIOR CENTER 
$20,000 was approved in the FY20 Budget to purchase a new vehicle for the Senior Center.  In FY19 the 

Senior Center received a $2,500 grant to assist with the purchase of a vehicle.  The new vehicle will replace 

the 2000 Ford Ranger.  It is recommended that the 2020 Ford Escape be purchased from Courtesy Ford for 

$19,664.88. 

 

Bids were received from the following: 

 

                               

MOTION by Commissioner Harris to approve the purchase from Courtesy Ford for a 2020 Ford Escape 

for $19,664.88, Seconded by Commissioner Milton.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT 
County Manager, Adam Mestres, presented a monthly overview of Morgan County government's current 

projects and/or issues. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 
No public comments were made. 

  

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Milton to exit regular 

session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION-PERSONNEL 
  

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie seconded by Commissioner Milton to enter Executive Session to 

discuss personnel. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in Executive Session Legal 

Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Milton to exit Executive 

Session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

7



MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Milton to enter Regular 

Session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Milton to exit regular 

session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner. Milton to adjourn.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 
 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk      LB 

8



January 21, 2020 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET THIS 

DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Ronald H. 

Milton., Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr., 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres and County Clerk Leslie Brandt. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation. 
 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve agenda as 

presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

RV HARDSHIP REQUEST 

 
Motion made by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to table the RV hardship 

request until the February 4th, 2020 Board meeting.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

RESOLUTION-2020 QUALIFYING FEES 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the 2020 qualifying 

fees for Morgan County Elections.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

COMMISSIONER LIAISON REPORTS 

Commissioners gave updates on Liaison assignments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

No public comments were made. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – POTENTIAL LITIGATION, PERSONNEL & REAL ESTATE 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Executive Session to 

discuss potential litigation, personnel and real estate. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit 

in Executive Session Legal Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Executive Session.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Regular Session.  

Unanimously Approved. 

9



 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to adjourn.  Unanimously 

Approved.  

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



State and Local Fair Market Value Lease
Agreement Number

Your Business Information

MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OFFICE

Full Legal Name of Lessee / DBA Name of Lessee Tax ID # (FEIN/TIN)

586000867

150 E WASHINGTON ST, MADISON, GA, 30650-1306, US

Sold-To: Address

Sold-To: Contact Name

LESLIE BRANDT

Sold-To: Contact Phone #

7063420725

Sold-To: Account #

0012087484

Ship-To: Address

150 E WASHINGTON ST, MADISON, GA, 30650-1306, US

Ship-To: Contact Name

LESLIE BRANDT

Ship-To: Contact Phone #

7063420725

Ship-To: Account #

0012087484

PO #

Bill-To: Contact Phone # Bill-To: Account #

150 E WASHINGTON ST, MADISON, GA, 30650-1306, US

0012087484

Bill-To: Contact Name

LESLIE BRANDT

Bill-To: Address

7063420725

Bill-To: Email

lbrandt@morgancountyga.gov

Your Business Needs

Qty Business Solution DescriptionItem

1 SENDPROCAUTO
SendPro C Auto

1 1FXA
     Interface to InView Dashboard

1 7H00
     C Series IMI Meter

1 APAC
     Connect+ Accounting Weight Break Reports

1 APAX
     Cost Acctg Accounts Level (100)

1 APB2
     Cost Accounting Devices (10)

1 APKN
     Account List Import/Export

1 C5CC
     Sendpro C Auto 95

1 CAAB
     Basic Cost Accounting

1 ME1A
     Meter Equipment - C Series

1 MP81
     C Series Integrated Scale

1 MP8110
     C-Series 10lb/5kg Upgrade

1 PAB1
     C Series Premium App Bundle

1 PTJ1
     SendPro Online

See Pitney Bowes Terms for additional terms and conditions

Page 1 of 3 Y101717368US154402.5 1/19

©2019 Pitney Bowes Inc. All rights reserved.

33



1 PTJA
     SendPro Basic 1 User

1 PTJN
     Single User Access

1 PTK1
     Web Browser Integration

1 PTK2
     SendPro C Series Shipping Integration

1 SJS2
     Softguard For SendPro C500

1 STDSLA
     Standard SLA-Equipment Service Agreement (for SendPro C Auto)

1 ZH24
     Manual Weight Entry

1 ZH29
     HZ03 95 LPM Speed

1 ZHC5
     SendPro C500 Base System Identifier

1 ZHD5
     USPS Rates with Metered Letter

1 ZHD7
     E Conf Services for Metered LTR. BDL

1 ZHWM
     10lb / 5kg Weighing Option for MP81

Your Payment Plan

Initial Term:

Number of Months Monthly Amount Billed Quarterly at*

Initial Payment Amount:36 months

$ 194.0036 $ 582.00

*Does not include any applicable sales, use, or property taxes which will be billed separately.

Tax Exempt Certificate Attached
Tax Exempt Certificate Not Required

(  )

(  )

(  )  Purchase Power® transaction fees extra

(X)  Purchase Power® transaction fees included

See Pitney Bowes Terms for additional terms and conditions

Page 2 of 3 Y101717368US154402.5 1/19

©2019 Pitney Bowes Inc. All rights reserved.

34



Title

Your Signature Below

Lessee Signature

Date

Title

Date

Print Name

Email Address

Print Name

Pitney Bowes Signature

[[SertifiSStamp_1]]

Not Applicable
State/Entity's Contract#

Non-Appropriations. You warrant that you have funds available to make all payments until the end of your current fiscal period, and shall use your best efforts to obtain funds to make all
payments in each subsequent fiscal period through the end of your lease term. If your appropriation request to your legislative body, or funding authority ("Governing Body") for funds to
make the payments is denied, you may terminate the lease on the last day of the fiscal period for which funds have been appropriated, upon (i) submission of documentation reasonably
satisfactory to us evidencing the Governing Body's denial of an appropriation sufficient to continue the lease for the next succeeding fiscal period, and (ii) satisfaction of all charges and
obligations under the lease incurred through the end of the fiscal period for which funds have been appropriated, including the return of the equipment at your expense.

By signing below, you agree to be bound by all the terms of this Agreement, including the Pitney Bowes Terms (Version 1/19), which are available at http://www.pb.com/statelocalfmvterms
and are incorporated by reference. This lease will be binding on us after we have completed our credit and documentation approval process and have signed below. This lease requires
you either to provide proof of insurance or participate in the ValueMAX® equipment protection program (see Section 6 of the State and Local Fair Market Value Lease Terms) for an
addit ional fee. If software is included in the Order, addit ional terms apply which are available by cl icking on the hyperl ink for that software located at
http://www.pitneybowes.com/us/license-terms-of-use/software-and-subscription-terms-and-conditions.html. Those additional terms are incorporated by reference.

Account Rep Name Email Address

Sales Information

Leonard Beresford leonard.beresford@pb.com

PBGFS Acceptance

See Pitney Bowes Terms for additional terms and conditions

Page 3 of 3 Y101717368US154402.5 1/19

©2019 Pitney Bowes Inc. All rights reserved.

Philipp von Hanstein

Chairman, Morgan County BOC
February 04, 2020

lbrandt@morgancountyga.gov

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49


	Top
	1. 4th Grade Presentation
	2. Audit Presentation
	3. Lynda Brown-America's Documents of Law & Government
	4. Four County Update
	JDA quarterly report Q4 2019

	5. January 07, 2020 Minutes
	01-07-2020 Regular Minutes-DRAFT

	6. January 21, 2020 Minutes
	01-21-2020 BOC Minutes-DRAFT

	7. February-April 2020 Calendars
	Feb-April 2020 Calendars

	8. Financials Jan 2020
	Jan 2020 Financials

	9. RV Hardship Request
	Richards - RV Hardship 1-17-2020

	10. Discussion of Clothes Closet Building
	11. Pitney Bowes Lease Renewal
	Pitney Bowes Lease Renewal-Exp 06-29-2023

	12. Animal Services Shelter Fencing
	Animal Shelter Fencing

	13. Purchase of Roll Off Truck
	Roll Off Truck

	14. Replacement Compactor Containers
	Replacement Containers

	15. Commissioner Liaison Reports
	16. Public Comments on Agenda Items
	17. Executive 02/04/2020
	Bottom

